
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Residents' and 
Environmental 
Services Policy 
Overview 
Committee 

 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY, 31 JULY 
2013 
 

Time: 5.30 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 3 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  

 

 
Councillors on the Committee 
 
Michael White (Chairman) 
David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman) 
Lynne Allen 
Shirley Harper-O'Neill 
Patricia Jackson 
Kuldeep Lakhmana (Labour Lead) 
Carol Melvin 
David Payne 
 
 

  
Published: Tuesday, 23 July 2013 

 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in Braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
 

 Contact:  Steven Maiden 
Tel: 01895 250692 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: smaiden@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
An Induction Loop System is available for use in 
the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for 
further information.  
 
Electronic devices 
 
Please switch off any mobile devices before the meeting. Any recording of the meeting is 
not allowed, either using electronic, mobile or visual devices. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 
 
 

 



 

 

Terms of Reference 
 
A central role of a Policy Overview Committees is to undertake in-depth policy reviews on 
specific issues. Reviews provide the opportunity to hear from members of the public and 
expert witnesses, including people from a wide range of external organisations. Reviews 
usually make recommendations to the Cabinet on how the Council could improve its work. 
They therefore perform an important role in opening up the policy-making process to a 
wider audience, including people who would not normally have the opportunity to 
participate. 
  
This Committee undertakes the policy overview role in relation to the following matters: 
 

• Highways, traffic, parking & street environment 
• Local transport, including rail, cycling & London Underground 
• Footpaths and Bridleways 
• Road safety and education  
• Planning & Building Control 
• Libraries 
• The Borough’s heritage and history 
• Sport & Leisure services 
• Waste management & recycling 
• Green spaces, allotments, woodlands, conservation and sustainable 

development 
• Consumer Protection, Trading Standards & Licensing 
• Registrars & Bereavement Services 
• Local watercourses, drainage and flooding 
• Environmental Health, Air & Noise Quality 
• Local impacts of Heathrow expansion  
• Local impacts of High Speed Rail  



 

Agenda 
 
 
 

 
Chairman's Announcements 
 

 Title of Report  Page 

1 Apologies for Absence 
 

 
 

2 Declaration of Interest in matters coming before this meeting 
 

 
 

3 To confirm that all items marked Part 1 will be considered in Public and 
that any items marked Part 2 will be considered in Private 
 

 
 

4 To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 May 2013 
 

1 - 4 
 

5 Topics for the First Major Review of the 2013/14 Municipal Year 
 

5 - 8 
 

6 Budget Planning Report for Residents Services 2014/15 
 

9 - 12 
 

7 Update on fly tipping in the Borough 
 

13 - 14 
 

8 Update on Roadside Memorials in the Borough 
 

15 - 20 
 

9 Forward Plan 
 

21 - 24 
 

10 Work Programme 
 

25 - 28 
 



Minutes 
 
RESIDENTS' AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
29 May 2013 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 3 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 
 Committee Members Present:  

Councillors Michael White (Chairman) 
David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman) 
Shirley Harper-O'Neill 
Carol Melvin 
Kuldeep Lakhmana 
Lynne Allen 
 
LBH Officers Present:  
Nigel Dicker, John Fern and Steven Maiden  
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

Action by 

 Apologies were received from Councillor David Payne. 
 

 

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE 
THIS MEETING  (Agenda Item 2) 
 

Action by 

 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

 

4. TO CONFIRM THAT ALL ITEMS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT ANY ITEMS MARKED PART 2 
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

Action by 

 It was confirmed that all items on the agenda would be heard in Part 1.  
 

 

5. TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 24 APRIL 
2013 AND 09 MAY 2013  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

Action by 

 The minutes of the meetings held on 24 April 2013 and 09 May 2013 
were agreed as accurate records.  
 

 

6. REVIEW TOPICS FOR THE FIRST MAJOR REVIEW OF 2013/14  
(Agenda Item 5) 
 

Action by 

 Following discussion, the Committee agreed the following 5 areas to be 
further investigated by officers as possible topics for the first major 
review of the Municipal Year: 

1. Street cleaning and the inclusion of footpaths and bridleways 
within cleaning programmes;  

2. Environmental Health issues in the south of the Borough with a 
focus on air and noise quality near Heathrow airport; 

3. The raising of water levels in the Borough and any challenges 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



  
caused by this; 

4. The heritage and history of the Borough with a focus on what is 
historically important and of value to residents; and 

5. Building Regulations and what the Council does to ensure that 
they are enforced across the Borough. 

 
Members raised concerns that there was a problem with fly tipping in 
the Borough and with crews not collecting all waste when they came to 
clear an area.  
 
It was agreed that officers would provide a briefing paper on fly tipping 
in the Borough at a future meeting. 
 
Resolved: That: 

1. Officers be asked to investigate the possible review topics 
identified and provide a report to the next meeting; and  

2. Officers be asked to provide a briefing paper on fly tipping 
in the Borough to a future meeting.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steven 
Maiden / 
Nigel Dicker 

 

7. UPDATE ON DROPPED KERB SCHEME / DOMESTIC VEHICLE 
CROSSOVER  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

Action by 

 Officers provided a presentation on the dropped kerbs scheme. It was 
noted that residents could register their dropped kerbs with the Council 
in order to have Civil Enforcement Officers visit the area to undertake 
enforcement action. Officers advised that the parking of vehicles in 
front of dropped kerbs was not a major problem in the Borough.  
 
A Member asked whether the Council monitored the number of cases 
in which residents were unable to exit their properties due to vehicles 
being parked across dropped kerbs. 
 
Officers advised that these issues would be monitored if a complaint 
was made and that enforcement action would be undertaken. 
 
A Member noted that vehicles parked across dropped kerbs regularly 
outside of the Borough’s schools during drop-off and pick-up times.  
 
Officers advised that this was a national problem and that Civil 
Enforcement Officers patrolled school areas during peak times.  
 
A Member raised concerns that there was no mention in the report of 
the provision of dropped kerbs for disabled users.  
 
Officers advised that residents who were registered disabled were 
provided for in the scheme and that they could receive additional 
funding for the installation of a dropped kerb.  
 
Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 

 

8. FORWARD PLAN  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

Action by 

 Resolved: That the Committee noted the Forward Plan and 
decided not to comment.  

 

Page 2



  
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME 2010  (Agenda Item 8) 
 

Action by 

 Resolved: That the Committee noted the Work Programme 
2013/14. 
 

 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 5.30 pm, closed at 6.06 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Steven Maiden on 01895 250692.  Circulation of these 
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 
 

 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Residents’ & Environmental Services POC – 31 July 2013 
 

PART 1 – Members, Public & Press 

 

TOPICS FOR THE FIRST MAJOR REVIEW OF THE 2013/14 MUNICIPAL YEAR 
 

Contact Officer: Steven Maiden  
Telephone: 01895 250692 

 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
At the meeting of 29 May 2013 Members asked that officers investigate a number of possible 
topics for the first major review of the municipal year. Following this meeting, officers from 
Democratic Services and Residents Services met to discuss the viability of these topics to 
provide updates and recommendations on how to progress. Updates on each suggested 
area are set out below. 
 
Despite extensive exploration of all of the suggested topics, none of the areas were seen to 
be appropriate for a major review at this stage. Consequently, further guidance from the 
Committee is being sought to determine the topic of the first major review. 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To note the update provided below and seek clarification from officers where 
required. 

 
2. To consider possible topics for the first major review of the 2013/14 Municipal 

Year. 
  
INFORMATION 
 
Background 
 
At the first RESPOC meeting of 2013/14 Members asked that officers investigate the 
following areas as possible topics for their first major review of the municipal year: 

 
1. Street cleaning and the inclusion of footpaths and bridleways within cleaning 

programmes;  
2. Environmental Health issues in the south of the Borough with a focus on air and noise 

quality near Heathrow airport; 
3. The raising of water levels in the Borough and any challenges caused by this; 
4. The heritage and history of the Borough with a focus on what is historically important 

and of value to residents; and 
5. Building Regulations and what the Council does to ensure that they are enforced 

across the Borough. 
 

Alleyway / Bridleway cleaning 
 
Officers advised that there were no strategic issues with the cleaning of bridleways that 
would warrant a major review. As noted at the meeting itself, officers acknowledge that there 
may be some localised problems with such littering but it was confirmed that the problem was 
not Borough-wide. 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Residents’ & Environmental Services POC – 31 July 2013 
 

PART 1 – Members, Public & Press 

 

However, it was suggested that the Council’s response to some of these localised problems 
might be a suitable topic to investigate in a single meeting review later in the year.  Should 
Members decide to undertake such a review, a scoping report can be produced for a later 
meeting. 

 
Environmental Health in the Heathrow Area 
 
Officers advised that the issues of air and noise quality in and around Heathrow Airport were 
being adequately dealt with by existing monitoring processes. There are currently a range of 
international, European and national standards for air quality and the Council’s 
Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) work closely with Heathrow airport staff to monitor the 
situation to ensure that the airport is compliant with these standards and that air quality is 
improving in the area. Officers will be able to provide a briefing paper on noise and air 
pollution in the Heathrow area for consideration at a later meeting should Members require 
further information. 
 
The Chairman, in consultation with colleagues, has determined that the review into low-level 
environmental issues is not an appropriate topic at this juncture.  

 
Water levels 
 
Officers advised that the areas of river, tidal and coastal flooding were the responsibility of 
the Environment Agency and not the Local Authority. A review into these areas was, 
therefore, considered to be difficult to influence in a major way. 
 
It should be noted that the Council does have responsibility for the management of other 
sources of flooding such as surface water, groundwater and flooding from ordinary 
watercourses. This means that it undertakes the following: 

• Recording information from flood events 
• Registering assets (e.g. a pumping station) that have been identified as having a 

role to play in flood management 
• Flood risk mapping and information gathering 
• Emergency planning 
• Sustainable urban drainage 

 
Although it appears that this is a broad area that might profit from a review, officers advised 
that a significant amount of work has recently been undertaken by the Council on flooding. 
Work was undertaken in the light of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 and led to 
the Council producing the Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment, the Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessment and the Surface Water Management Plan. Further planning and mapping 
documents are in the process of being developed to deal with flooding and officers noted that 
there would be little that the Committee could contribute to this ongoing work through a 
review. 

 
Heritage and History of the Borough 
 
Officers noted that the Borough’s heritage was a Hillingdon Improvement Project (HIP) 
Worksteam that focused on heritage / civic pride projects, building a historic legacy and 
promoting Local Arts and Culture. Officers emphasised that the Council is already actively 
working in this area and, moreover, has a successful track record in promoting the Borough’s 

Page 6



Residents’ & Environmental Services POC – 31 July 2013 
 

PART 1 – Members, Public & Press 

 

heritage and celebrating its successes. Consequently, it was felt that there was no scope for 
a review in this area that did not duplicate work already being undertaken elsewhere in the 
Council.  

 
It should also be noted that the Committee undertook a review into Heritage in Hillingdon in 
2008 which focused on “how those living in the Borough can enjoy heritage and how the 
history of Hillingdon can be promoted.” Undertaking a similar review could be a further 
duplication of work already undertaken. 
 
Borough-wide Building Regulations 
 
Officers noted that there were no significant issues with Building Regulations in the Borough 
that would warrant a major review. The following reasons were provided: 

• The Committee had undertaken a major review in 2009/10 into Planning 
Enforcement and the issue of ‘homes’ in back gardens. Although this review did not 
focus broadly on building regulations, it was felt that there may be significant overlap 
if this review was undertaken. 

• Officers also advised that many of the issues relating to building regulations and 
enforcement issues were extremely complex and detailed. It was felt that these 
issues may be difficult to explore strategically at Committee level. However, a 
briefing paper could be prepared for a future meeting. 

 
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 
 

1. Members are asked to suggest review topics for the first major review of the year. 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



  

BUDGET PLANNING REPORT FOR RESIDENTS SERVICES 2014/15 
 

Contact Officer: Andy Evans 
Telephone: 01895 250994 

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
This is the first opportunity for the Policy Overview Committee to discuss the current 
stage of development of budget planning work with regard to Residents Services 
(excluding Housing & Education).  Within the context of the Council’s overall financial 
position, this paper sets out the main financial issues facing the Group’s services and 
the work being undertaken to respond to them.  This paper gives a strategic context in 
which the detailed proposals to be discussed at Policy Overview Committee meetings in 
January 2014 will need to be considered. 
 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 
It is recommended that the Committee notes the development of the financial planning 
process undertaken to date and comments as appropriate on the response to the issues 
being developed by the Group. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
1 This is the first of two opportunities within the planning cycle for the Policy 

Overview Committee to consider issues relating to budget planning for 2014/15.  
The focus of this report is the major issues that have been identified through the 
service and financial planning process for Residents Services.  The report to be 
considered in January 2014 will set out the detailed budget proposals for the 
Group, those proposals having been included in the report to Cabinet on the 
Medium Term Financial Forecast (MTFF) on 19 December 2013. 

 
Corporate Summary 
 
2 While the focus of the discussion for the Policy Overview Committee should be the 

specific services within its remit, it is important that this discussion is conducted in 
the context of the overall corporate financial position. 

 
3 The Comprehensive Spending Review 2010 set out the financial challenge facing 

local government over the following four year period, the last of which is 2014/15. 
Whilst the initial assessment of the CSR suggested that the cuts were heavily front 
loaded in the first two years, it has since become apparent that the estimates on 
which the CSR was based were over optimistic and the period of austerity will 
continue for a significantly longer period, potentially until 2018 or later. The budget 
report to Council in February 2013 identified the savings requirement for 2014/15 
as £17.0m and work is currently underway to refresh this figure. Whilst the finance 
settlement announced in December 2012 was for a two year period, the figures for 
2014/15 were indicative rather than confirmed at that time. The budget in March 
introduced a further 1% cut for 2014/15, however, until the final settlement is 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



  

announced towards the end of the year the final funding position will not be 
clarified.   

 
4 In addition, there is significant other uncertainty within the budget for next year both 

from changes introduced in 2013 and from the ongoing welfare reforms: 
 

• The responsibility of public health transferred to local government on 1 
April 2013 and significant work remains outstanding in the allocation of that 
funding. 

• Council Tax benefit was abolished on 1 April 2013 and replaced with a 
local Council Tax Reduction scheme with a 10% cut in funding.  The new 
scheme has only been in operation for just over 3 months and so the 
impact on Council Tax revenue is unclear. 

• The retention of business rates commenced in April 2013 giving local 
authorities a stake in the generation of additional business rates income.  
However, the system is sensitive to changes in the rateable value of the 
Borough and at this early stage of the year it is not easy to predict the 
impact on next year’s funding. 

• Central Government are introducing significant Welfare Reforms including 
Universal Credit, under occupancy and the Benefit Cap all of which are 
forecast to impact significantly on Council services and on budgets.  Early 
indications of budget pressures are starting to emerge in Month 2 
monitoring. 

• A reform of education funding is also expected, but details on this scheme 
are not yet available. 

 
5 Alongside this, any other emerging pressures which arise throughout this financial 

year will have to be provided for in next year’s budget. The budget gap will be 
monitored throughout the year and the budget strategy adjusted accordingly to 
ensure that a balanced budget for 2014/15 can be set. 

 
Strategy to deal with the budget gap 
 
6 The Council remains strongly placed to deal with the challenges ahead.  We have 

a good track record of coming in or under budget each year and have accumulated 
balances of £30.2m by the end of 2012/13. We have a well established HIP 
programme that has helped steer the Council from a position of having low 
balances to one of having healthy balances at the same time as dealing with 
significant external challenges. This has been enhanced by the development of the 
BID programme as the main vehicle for delivering the fundamental changes 
required to the Council’s structure and ways of working in order to address the 
reductions in funding going forward. 

 
MTFF process update 
 
7 The timetable for the budget process was refreshed in February 2013 and the first 

MTFF sessions with Groups took place during late June and early July to review 
the detailed budget proposals developed by each group. Progress on the 

Page 10



  

development and delivery of these proposals will be monitored monthly by CMT 
and the Leader of the Council throughout the remainder of the year. 

 
Timetable for 2014/15 Budget 
 
8 The broad timetable is as follows: 
 
Process Timetable 
Monthly BTB updates (March 13 to Feb 14) Monthly 
Monthly Leader MTFF updates (March 13 to Feb 14) Monthly 
Special Budget CMT to address opening 14/15 gap Late February 
MTFF BID Proposals – Firm up plans on cross cutting BID 
Initiatives  

March 

MTFF strategy report to Leader  May 
MTFF Review – 1st Challenge Sessions  June/July  
Initial MTFF 2014/15 Report to Leader End July 
POC Reviews – Context for 2014/15 Budgets July 
MTFF Review (2) – 2nd Challenge Session  Sept/Early October 
Updated MTFF Report to Leader November 
Joint CMT and Cabinet Awayday November 
Draft Local Government Finance Settlement December 
Draft MTFF reported to Cabinet December 
POC review of draft Group Plans and budget proposals January 
Council Tax setting February 
 
Budget Planning in Residents Services 
 
Summary of Key Financial Issues 
 
 
9 Residents Services (excluding Housing & Education) have identified significant 

budget savings for 2013/14 totalling £4.7 million. These include efficiency savings 
from reviews of Technical Admin & Business Support, ICT, Facilities & 
Maintenance support services and an ongoing review of discretionary spend. In 
addition further income has been received through the New Homes Bonus grant, 
and recycling income has been increased through the implementation of a new dry 
recycling contract.  

 
10 The 2014/15 MTFF proposals are continuing to develop a number of existing 

workstreams, and identifying any new opportunities for savings and efficiencies 
emerging from the work undertaken through the Council’s now well established 
HIP and BID processes. Examples of these include a widening of Technical 
Support review, ICT modernisation, and a number of restructures following on from 
a review of the Senior Management team to integrate Housing services. The 
emphasis continues to be on generating savings through service improvement 
based on process efficiency, use of technology and consolidation of provision. This 
work will be supported by the detailed budget monitoring process, alongside the 
established and rigorous processes for challenging expenditure and recruitment 
decisions. 

Page 11



  

 
11 It is anticipated that there will be limited opportunities for significant further income 

generation from fee-based services within Residents Services given the economic 
climate and that any increases would fall upon residents and businesses. Where 
applicable the levels of non-residential charges will be kept under review, in the 
context of usage and capacity levels. The Group will also continue to vigorously 
pursue any opportunities for additional grant income, where these are aligned to 
Council objectives. 

 
Next Steps 
 
12 The Medium Term Financial Forecast setting out the draft revenue budget and 

capital programme will be considered by Cabinet on 19 December 2013 and 
issued for consultation during the remainder of December 2013 and January 2014.  
This will include detailed consideration by each of the Policy Overview Committees 
of the proposals relating to their respective services. 

 
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 
 
Consider whether there are comments or suggestions that the Committee wishes to 
make.  
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
The Council’s Budget: General Fund Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 2013/14 
– reports to Cabinet 14 February 2013 and Council 28 February 2013. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee – 31 July 2013 

 
 

Update on Fly Tipping in the Borough 
 

Contact officer: Steven Maiden 
                      Telephone: 01895 250692 

 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
At the meeting of 29 May 2013, Members requested a brief update on the issue of fly 
tipping. It was requested that the update address their concerns that crews were not 
clearing all waste from an area following a fly tip being reported to Waste Services.  
 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 

 
• To seek clarification from officers on any of the information in this report.  
• To note the update on fly tipping. 

 
 
INFORMATION 
 
On receiving a report of fly tipping officers within Waste Services require the following 
information. 
 

1.  The exact location. 
2.  The nature of waste. 
3.  The volume/quantity of waste. 

 
It must be stressed that, if the above information is not available, a supervisor or the team 
are always sent to the site to undertake the work. The benefit of advance knowledge 
assists in deciding response times, vehicle type and manpower to be dispatched.   
 
If the fly tip is on Highway land it is always removed and officers are unaware of any 
occasions where this has not been the case.   
 
In discussion with other departments, often Housing or Green Spaces, Waste Service will 
undertaken removal of all waste from Council owned land.   
 
Waste is not removed from private land without prior consultation with officers in ASBIT, 
as removal of such waste may contravene enforcement action already undertaken. 
 
Where fly tipping is of a hazardous nature, or is a danger to pedestrians or road users, 
Waste Services will utilise the emergency call out team, which operates 365 days a year, 
24 hours a day.  Response time to an emergency is 1 hour and Waste Services always 
respond inside this timescale.   
 
Although not always recorded as fly tipping, the only occasions when "selected" waste is 
removed would relate to the mis-use of recycling bags or black bags containing garden 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee – 31 July 2013 

 
 

waste.  Refuse crews will not check the contents of the recycling bag and in turn 
recycling crews will leave bags containing contaminated waste in order for the recycling 
to be accepted at its end destination. In these circumstances it often falls on street 
cleansing to remove the bags at a later date. 

Page 14



 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee – 31 July 2013 

Update on Roadside Memorials in the Borough 
 

Contact officer: Steven Maiden 
                      Telephone: 01895 250692 

 
REASON FOR ITEM 

 
At the request of the Chairman, this item provides information on the Council’s current 
approach to roadside memorials in the Borough and the related guidance document.  
 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 

 
• To seek clarification from officers on any of the information in this report.  
• To note the update on roadside memorials and the accompanying guidance 

document. 
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Reports of unsightly memorials (or those that are tended for an excessive period of time) 
are referred to the Residents Services Investigations Team which deals with street 
environment issues. Each case is assessed on its merits, and appropriate liaison takes 
place with local residents as to their feelings about the memorial which can range from 
sympathy with the bereaved family to annoyance with its presence as a reminder of a 
tragedy and / or as an untidy nuisance. Where appropriate, the family are contacted to 
discuss their plans, although, in many cases, the identity of the bereaved family is not 
known. However, in some cases, the police traffic division's family liaison officer will be 
able to make contact with the bereaved family on the Council’s behalf.  
 
Families are always encouraged to regard roadside memorial not as permanent but as 
temporary tributes to remain in place and be tended for a reasonable period as part of the 
grieving process. The aim is to ensure that, so long as a memorial does not give rise to 
any hazard or nuisance, it can be allowed to remain for a period of 13 months (to allow 
the marking of the first anniversary of the accident), after which time Council officers can 
contact the relatives or friends of the bereaved and discuss the removal of the items. 
 
Where a memorial provides additional distress to members of the public, a more robust 
approach may be adopted.  

Agenda Item 8

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



1

Guidance for Roadside Memorials & 

Other Memorials on Council Controlled Land

Introduction

1.0 This document gives the Council's view on roadside memorials and other 
 memorialisation on Council controlled land, following sudden accidental 
 road deaths. It provides guidance to the bereaved, nearby residents and 
 Police or Council officers. 

2.0 Roadside memorials can be difficult to manage. There are many ways to 
 permanently memorialise an individual in a dignified manner, without the use 
 of a roadside memorial, and the Council offers a range of options to residents 
 through Breakspear Crematorium, which has extensive grounds and gardens 
 of remembrance. Options include memorial rosebushes with name plaques, 
 benches and ornamental shrubs and trees. Memorials in the grounds of the 
 crematorium are easier to look after and visit, and are in a more pleasant 
 environment that allows quiet reflection and contemplation. 

3.0 However, the Council accepts that there may be a need to acknowledge a 
 sudden death caused by a traffic accident, by marking an area of highway 
 verge with an informal memorial, eg flowers, small decorative items, or a 
 plaque placed on highway verge. This practice has grown considerably in 
 recent years. Usually, tributes are placed for a short period of time, 
 immediately following an accident, but this may not always be the case. 

4.0 As the grieving process is intensely private and emotionally charged, the 
 Council has no wish to unduly interfere or intrude, especially in the very 
 difficult days or weeks immediately after an accident. 

5.0 This guidance is not meant to bring about the immediate removal of small 
 temporary memorials that cause no distraction, hazard or distress to others, 
 but to control the establishment of large memorials that could present such 
 difficulties for other road users. The aim is to ensure that so long as a
 memorial does not give rise to any hazard or nuisance, it can be allowed to 
 remain for a period of 13 months (to allow the marking of the first anniversary 
 of the accident), after which time, Council officers can contact the relatives or 
 friends of the bereaved and arrange for any items that are still wanted to be 
 temporarily stored at Breakspear Crematorium, or returned. 

Time allowed for a memorial to remain 

6.0 The Council cannot authorise long term or permanent roadside memorials. 
  Laying of floral, or other tributes will be allowed on the understanding that
  they will be removed within 13 months of the accident and that they do not 
  block sight lines, or otherwise present a danger through obstruction or
  distraction to motorists. This assessment will be made by a Council Highways 
  Inspector. After the 13 months, remaining floral items will be disposed of. Non 
  floral items will be taken to Breakspear Crematorium, stored for 3 months and 
  then disposed of, but known family or friends will be informed of this
  beforehand, where possible.  

Page 17



2

 7.0 In some instances, and after the 13 months have elapsed, the memorial site 
  may become established as a place to revisit on anniversaries etc. This  
  situation might not arise if a permanent memorial has been arranged
  elsewhere and the need may eventually fade with the passage of time.
  However, the Council will not intervene at this point unless a hazard or  
  nuisance is being caused as described above. On anniversaries such as this, 
  an officer (Police or Council) will liaise with the family to remove any new
  personal items from the roadside, 7 days later.  

Suitability of memorials and sites 

8.0 Where a memorial site is close to properties, residents’ views may be taken 
  into account in determining where personal memorials and tributes should be 
  placed. 

9.0 Assessments of highway memorial sites may be carried out by the Police  
  and / or by a Council Highways Inspector. Items must not be placed at
  locations that are hazardous or difficult to access, such as the central
  reservation of dual carriageways, on busy roundabouts or very close to the 
  carriageway of any road. Items that are considered to have an effect on road 
  safety may be removed at any time, but will be retained if possible, as above. 

10.0 Personal memorials and tributes should not include materials that might
 physically deteriorate rapidly, detracting from the immediate area, and 
 indeed, the temporary memorial itself. There should be no moving objects 
 such as toy windmills or wind chimes, no lights of any sort and decorations 
 such as tinsel that could distract road users should be avoided. Small 
 temporary areas (up to 3 ft x 3 ft) marked out by decorative kerbing or fencing 
 may be allowable by agreement, so long as this does not present a hazard or 
 a visual distraction to road users. 

Alternative long term memorials 

11.0 Aside from the possibility of using memorial services provided at Breakspear 
  Crematorium, after the roadside memorial has finally gone, friends or
  relatives may wish to request that a memorial bench or tree be placed on 
  Council controlled land, such as a green space or at a suitable point along a 
  footpath. Consideration will be given to such requests, but it may not always 
  be possible to accommodate them. 

12.0 If a bench or tree is requested, Green Spaces Officers will assess the
  preferred location for suitability. If the preferred location is not acceptable,
  efforts will be made to find a mutually acceptable alternative. Those  
  requesting benches or trees will be liable for all costs incurred by the Council. 

13.0 Benches must be to a specification used by the Council, appropriate to the
  location, and will be installed by the Council's contractor. Tree species must 
  be appropriate to a location and be in line with any existing tree planting  
  policies. Planting will be carried out by the Council's contractor but initial  
  watering will be the responsibility of those requesting it. 

Page 18



3

14.0 Factors that will be considered by the Green Spaces Officers when siting a 
  memorial bench or tree include impact on the visual amenity of an area, the 
  potential for antisocial behaviour, the need to ensure access for highway  
  maintenance general highway access requirements. If it is not possible to  
  agree a site it may still be possible for friends or relatives of the deceased to 
  arrange for a memorial at Breakspear Crematorium as per paragraph 2.0. 

15.0 The Council does not accept responsibility for the maintenance of any 
  personal memorials and tributes, or the loss, damage, removal or relocation 
  of temporary roadside memorials that may occur through vandalism, or due 
  to road maintenance or construction activities. The Council and others must 
  continue to perform all construction and maintenance works required on the 
  public highway, and this may include areas where there are personal
  memorials and tributes.  

Contact Details for Breakspear Crematorium 

Breakspear Road, Ruislip, Middlesex , HA4 7SJ 

Telephone: 01895 556560 

Email: bcrematorium@hillingdon.gov.uk

Web: www.breakspearcrematorium.com 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee – 31 July 2013 

FORWARD PLAN  

Contact officer: Steven Maiden 
                      Telephone: 01895 250692 

REASON FOR ITEM 

The Committee is required by its terms of reference to consider the Forward Plan and 
comment as appropriate to the decision maker on key decisions which relate to services 
within its remit (before they are taken by Cabinet or Cabinet Member). 

OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 

 To comment on items going to the Cabinet or Cabinet Members for decision.   

 Or to note the items and decide not to comment. 

INFORMATION

1. The Forward Plan for the following months has been published.  Those items that are 
within this Committee’s remit are shown on the attached version of the Forward Plan. 
The Committee may wish to consider and comment on these items.

2. Committee Members are requested to send in any questions they have regarding the 
attached Forward Plan or on any reports going to the next meeting of Cabinet, and to 
notify any officers that they would like to attend to give advice. 

SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 

 To consider whether there are comments or suggestions that the Committee 
wishes to make that will aid Cabinet’s decision making.  

Agenda Item 9

Page 21



R
e

f
D

ec
is

io
n

F
u

rt
h

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
W

ar
d

(s
)

Report to Full 
Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Officer 
Contact for 
further 
information

Consultation 
on the 
decision

NEW ITEM

Private 
decision?

S
I

S
ta

n
d

ar
d

 It
em

s 
ta

ke
n

 
ea

ch
 m

o
n

th
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
b

er

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
rs

 m
ak

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 e
ac

h 
m

on
th

 o
n 

st
an

da
rd

 it
em

s 
- 

de
ta

ils
 o

f t
he

se
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

ite
m

s 
ar

e 
lis

te
d 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

F
or

w
ar

d 
P

la
n.

 

V
ar

io
us

A
ll

A
D

 -
 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

V
ar

io
us

95
4

L
o

ca
l 

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
(L

IP
) 

20
14

/1
5 

to
 

20
16

/1
7 

T
he

 L
IP

 w
as

 d
ra

fte
d 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 in
 2

01
1 

w
ith

 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 w
hi

ch
 e

xt
en

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
lif

e 
of

 th
e 

M
ay

or
's

 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
(M

T
S

) 
to

 2
03

1.
 It

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

cl
ea

r 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
tr

an
sp

or
t i

n 
H

ill
in

gd
on

. T
he

 
LI

P
 in

cl
ud

ed
 a

 th
re

e-
ye

ar
 d

el
iv

er
y 

pl
an

 fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
20

11
-1

4.
  T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 p

re
se

nt
s 

a 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
 to

 
C

ab
in

et
 fo

r 
20

14
/1

5,
 2

01
5/

16
 a

nd
 2

01
6/

17
 w

ith
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
nd

 a
 ti

m
et

ab
le

s 
as

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
in

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

 in
 M

ay
 2

01
3.

   

A
ll 

W
ar

ds
C

llr
 K

ei
th

 
B

ur
ro

w
s

R
S

 -
 A

la
n 

T
ill

y
N

E
W

95
6

C
le

an
in

g
 a

n
d

 W
as

te
 

co
n

tr
ac

t
C

ab
in

et
 w

ill
 b

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 a

w
ar

d 
a 

co
nt

ra
ct

 fo
r 

cl
ea

ni
ng

 
&

 lo
ck

in
g 

of
 p

ub
lic

 to
ile

ts
, c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
an

d 
di

sp
os

al
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

cl
in

ic
al

 w
as

te
 &

 d
is

po
sa

l o
f t

he
 c

on
te

nt
s 

of
 

do
g 

fo
ul

in
g 

bi
ns

.

A
ll

C
llr

 
Jo

na
th

an
 

B
ia

nc
o

R
S

 -
 N

ig
el

 
D

ic
ke

r
N

E
W

P
riv

at
e 

(3
)

S
I

Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
O

b
lig

at
io

n
s 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 r
ep

o
rt

R
eg

ul
ar

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt

 w
ith

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
sp

en
di

ng
 o

n 
se

ct
io

n 
10

6 
(d

ev
el

op
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n)
 

m
on

ie
s.

A
ll

C
llr

 K
ei

th
 

B
ur

ro
w

s
R

S
 -

 J
al

es
 

T
ip

pe
ll 

/ 
V

an
es

sa
 

S
co

tt 
S

I
G

if
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 F

u
n

ct
io

n
s

T
o 

re
po

rt
 to

 C
ab

in
et

 a
ny

 g
ift

 fu
nd

in
g 

fr
om

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 C

ou
nc

il'
s 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

nd
 ju

st
ifi

ab
le

 c
os

ts
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 d

is
ch

ar
gi

ng
 it

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 fu

nc
tio

n.
 

T
B

C
C

llr
 K

ei
th

 
B

ur
ro

w
s

R
S

 -
 J

am
es

 
R

od
ge

r

C
o

u
n

ci
l D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
:  

R
S

 =
 R

es
id

en
ts

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

 C
Y

P
S

 =
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

's
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

   
A

S
C

S
= 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

   
 A

D
 =

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
   

 F
D

= 
F

in
an

ce
 

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

D
ec

is
io

ns
 -

 A
ug

us
t 

20
13

C
ab

in
et

 m
ee

ti
ng

 -
 2

6 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
13

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

D
ec

is
io

ns
 -

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

N
o 

C
ab

in
et

 m
ee

ti
ng

 i
n 

A
ug

us
t

D
em

o
cr

at
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

T
el

: 
01

89
5 

25
04

70
 o

r 
em

ai
l:

 d
em

o
cr

at
ic

@
h

ill
in

g
d

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

   
   

   
 P

ag
e 

1
T

h
is

 e
d

it
io

n
 s

u
p

er
se

d
es

 A
L

L
 p

re
vi

o
u

s 
ed

it
io

n
s

Page 22



R
e

f
D

ec
is

io
n

F
u

rt
h

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
W

ar
d

(s
)

Report to Full 
Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Officer 
Contact for 
further 
information

Consultation 
on the 
decision

NEW ITEM

Private 
decision?

C
o

u
n

ci
l D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
:  

R
S

 =
 R

es
id

en
ts

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

 C
Y

P
S

 =
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

's
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

   
A

S
C

S
= 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

   
 A

D
 =

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
   

 F
D

= 
F

in
an

ce
 

S
I

S
ta

n
d

ar
d

 It
em

s 
ta

ke
n

 
ea

ch
 m

o
n

th
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
b

er

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
rs

 m
ak

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 e
ac

h 
m

on
th

 o
n 

st
an

da
rd

 it
em

s 
- 

de
ta

ils
 o

f t
he

se
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

ite
m

s 
ar

e 
lis

te
d 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

F
or

w
ar

d 
P

la
n.

 

V
ar

io
us

A
ll

A
D

 -
 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

V
ar

io
us

S
I

N
ew

 a
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

S
10

6 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

T
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ob

lig
at

io
n 

fu
nd

s 
fo

r 
us

e 
lo

ca
lly

.
C

llr
 R

ay
 

P
ud

di
fo

ot
 &

 
C

llr
 

Jo
na

th
an

 
B

ia
nc

o

R
S

 -
 N

ik
ki

 
W

ya
tt

S
I

L
o

ca
l S

af
et

y 
S

ch
em

es
 a

n
d

 
P

ar
ki

n
g

 R
ev

en
u

e 
A

cc
o

u
n

t 
fu

n
d

ed
 

sc
h

em
es

T
o 

co
ns

id
er

 p
et

iti
on

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

nd
 d

ec
id

e 
on

 fu
tu

re
 

ac
tio

n
C

llr
 K

ei
th

 
B

ur
ro

w
s

R
S

 -
 D

av
id

 
K

no
w

le
s

T
ra

ffi
c 

Li
ai

so
n 

G
ro

up

S
I

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

 
C

ro
ss

in
g

s
T

o 
ap

pr
ov

e 
sc

he
m

es
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

C
llr

 K
ei

th
 

B
ur

ro
w

s
R

S
 -

 D
av

id
 

K
no

w
le

s
S

I
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 -

 L
o

ca
l 

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

Lo
ca

l I
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
sc

he
m

es
 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 r

ea
lm

, p
ar

ki
ng

, r
oa

d 
sa

fe
ty

, s
ch

oo
l 

tr
av

el
, w

al
ki

ng
, c

yc
lin

g,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 

T
ra

ffi
c 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

O
rd

er
s.

C
llr

 K
ei

th
 

B
ur

ro
w

s
R

S
 -

 D
av

id
 

K
no

w
le

s

S
I

C
h

ry
sa

lis
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
o

f 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts

T
he

 C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r(

s)
 w

ill
 b

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
s.

V
ar

io
us

C
llr

 
D

ou
gl

as
 

M
ill

s 
&

 C
llr

 
Jo

na
th

an
 

B
ia

nc
o

R
S

 -
 H

el
en

a 
W

eb
st

er

S
I

E
re

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 
R

en
ew

al
 o

f 
S

tr
ee

t 
F

u
rn

it
u

re

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

C
ab

in
et

's
 d

ec
is

io
n 

on
 2

4t
h 

S
ep

te
m

be
r,

 fi
na

l 
si

gn
-o

ff 
of

 a
ny

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 a
ga

in
st

 th
is

 te
rm

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
m

us
t b

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
Le

ad
er

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
fo

r 
F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 B

us
in

es
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s.

A
ll

C
llr

 R
ay

 
P

ud
di

fo
ot

 
an

d 
C

llr
 

Jo
na

th
an

 
B

ia
nc

o

R
S

 -
 J

oh
n 

F
er

n

C
A

B
IN

ET
 M

EM
B
ER

 D
EC

IS
IO

N
S 

- 
LI

ST
 O

F 
ST

A
N

D
A

R
D

 IT
EM

S 
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
ED

 E
A

C
H

 M
O

N
T

H

D
em

o
cr

at
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

T
el

: 
01

89
5 

25
04

70
 o

r 
em

ai
l:

 d
em

o
cr

at
ic

@
h

ill
in

g
d

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

   
   

   
 P

ag
e 

2
T

h
is

 e
d

it
io

n
 s

u
p

er
se

d
es

 A
L

L
 p

re
vi

o
u

s 
ed

it
io

n
s

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee – 31 July 2013 
 
 

RESIDENTS’ AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
2013/14 
 

Contact Officer: Steven Maiden  
Telephone: 01895 250692 

 
All Committee meetings will begin at 5.30 p.m. 

 
 
REASON FOR REPORT 
 
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans. This is a 
standard item at the end of each agenda.  
 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To confirm dates for meetings  
 

2. To make suggestions for future working practices and reviews.  
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Meeting Dates and Rooms - Meetings start at 7pm unless indicated below 
 

Meetings 
 

Room 

29 May 2013 CR3 
31 July 2013 CR3 
25 September 2013 CR3 
17 October 2013 CR3 
14 November 2013 CR3 
4 December 2013 CR3A 
21 January 2014 CR3A 
26 February 2014 CR6 
26 March 2014 CR3 
30 April 2014 CR3 
28 May 2014 CR3 

Agenda Item 10

Page 25



 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee – 31 July 2013 
 
 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 
 

Review Discussion – to discuss and agree potential review 
topics for 2013/14 
Update on the Dropped Kerb Scheme 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

29 May 2013 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

 
Review Discussion – consideration of scoping report for 
Major Review 

Consideration of Budget Planning Report for Residents 
Services 2014/15 

Briefing note on fly tipping in the Borough 

Update on the Borough’s roadside memorials 

Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

31 July 2013 
 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

 
Major Review – first witness session 

Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

25 September 2013 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

 
Major Review – second witness session 

Work Programme – review the annual work programme 
 

17 October 2013 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

 
Major Review – consideration of draft final report 
Consideration of topics for single meeting review 
Annual Safety at Sports Grounds Report 

Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

14 November 2013 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

 
Single Meeting Review 4 December 2013 

 Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

Page 26



 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee – 31 July 2013 
 
 

 Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 26 February 2014 

 Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 26 March 2014 

 Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 30 April 2014 

 Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 28 May 2014 

 Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

 

Consideration of draft Final Report for Single Meeting 
Review 

Budget Report for consideration 

Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

21 January 2014 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions and 
comment if appropriate 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 May 2013
	5 Topics for the First Major Review of the 2013/14 Municipal Year
	6 Budget Planning Report for Residents Services 2014/15
	7 Update on fly tipping in the Borough
	8 Update on Roadside Memorials in the Borough
	Roadside_Memorials_Guidance_Feb_2012

	9 Forward Plan
	10 Work Programme

